
Meeting of:  Communities, Regeneration and Environment 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Date: Wednesday 28th August 2019
Time: 4.30 pm.
Venue: Training and Conference Suite, First Floor, 

Number One Riverside, Smith Street, 
Rochdale, OL16 1XU

This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.

Item 
No.

AGENDA Page No

1.  APOLOGIES 

To receive any apologies for absence. 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.    

3.  URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

To determine whether there are any additional items of business 
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency. 

4.  ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 

To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to 
be excluded from the meeting. 

5.  DISPOSAL OF LAND AT STARKEY STREET/LANGTON STREET, 
HEYWOOD 

3 - 9

The Committee to consider a decision made by the Cabinet that has 
been called-in by Members of the Council. 

Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee Members:
Councillor Tom Besford Councillor Jacqueline Beswick

Public Document Pack



Councillor Susan Emmott Councillor Andy Kelly
Councillor Daniel Meredith Councillor Angela Smith
Councillor June West Councillor Peter Williams
Councillor Peter Winkler Councillor Sameena Zaheer

For more information about this meeting, please contact:
Peter Thompson
Governance and Committee Services
Number One Riverside,
Smith Street,
Rochdale, OL16 1XU.

Telephone: 01706 924715
e-mail: peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk 

mailto:peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk


Report to Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

Date of Meeting 28th August 2019
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Planning, Development & 
Housing

Report Author Peter Thompson
Public/Private Document Public 

Call-in: Disposal of Land at Starkey Street / Langton Street 
Heywood

Executive Summary

1. This report presents details of a decision that has been made by the Cabinet, 
at its meeting on 30th July (minute 28: Disposal of Land at Starkey 
Street/Langton Street, Heywood), which has been called-in by Councillors 
O’Rourke and Rush.

Recommendation

2. The Committee give consideration to this matter and;
a. Confirm the decision of the Cabinet, in which case the decision takes 

immediate effect;
b. Recommend to the Cabinet that they reconsider the decision on ground 

to be specified by this meeting of the Communities, Regeneration and 
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee, in which case the 
matter will be considered at the next available meeting of the Cabinet;

c. Or. Should the decision be considered to fall outside of the Council’s 
Budgetary and Policy Framework, the item be referred to Full Council to 
determine if the decision should be reviewed.

Reason for Recommendation

3. The recommendations are presented so that Members of the Communities, 
Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee can make 
an informed decision with regard to the decision that the Cabinet has made in 
respect of this matter.

Key Points for Consideration

4. The decision made by the Cabinet, has been called-in by Councillors 
O’Rourke and Rush (the Cabinet’s decision (minute 28), the report which the 
Cabinet considered and the protocol for dealing with Called-in items of 

Page 3

Agenda Item 5



4.1

business are attached).

Councillors Rush and O’Rourke have called-in this item for the following 
reasons: 
1) There was insufficient consultation on the proposals. In the Cabinet’s report 
it mentions that there has been consultation with the North Heywood members 
and discussion with the Chair of Heywood Township. Moreover the report 
states that Heywood North Councillors oppose the move without giving any 
detailed narrative in support.

2) Lack of understanding of the decision that Cabinet has made and the 
reasons for the decision being made. In this regard it is possible that one 
Cabinet Member was of the opinion that the land was being disposed at 
another location.

Alternatives Considered

No alternatives have been considered, as the Council’s Constitution requires 
that this Committee deals with this particular item of called-in business.

Costs and Budget Summary

5. None applicable

Risk and Policy Implications

6.        None applicable

Consultation 

7. None applicable

Background Papers Place of Inspection

There are no background papers 
associated with this report.

n/a

For Further Information Contact: Peter Thompson, Tel: 01706 924715, 
peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk 

Page 4



CABINET – 30TH JULY 2019

DISPOSAL OF LAND AT STARKEY STREET / LANGTON STREET HEYWOOD
28. Cabinet considered proposals for the disposal of sites at Starkey Street and 
Langton Street in Heywood.  The sites were considered to be surplus to the 
Council’s operational requirements.  The sale of the sites would generate a capital 
receipt for the Council and reduce its maintenance liabilities.

Consultation had been carried out with the North Heywood ward councillors and the 
Chair of Heywood Township.  Objections have been raised to the sale of Langton 
Street car park – plot 3 on the plan below. In view of the objections raised Cabinet 
were requested to consider the future of the site by using its powers to release these 
sites for disposal.

Alternatives Considered
The site could be retained in its current use. Retention of this site will not secure 
capital receipts or beneficial development, nor reduce the Council’s financial and/or 
environmental liabilities. Retaining this site in its current use carries the risk of 
liabilities such as fly-tipping, anti-social behaviour and regular or ad hoc maintenance 
obligations

Plot 3 could be retained as a car park and only plots 1 and 2 released for 
development.  

It was AGREED:
1. That the sites at Starkey Street and Langton Street be declared surplus to 
requirements and released for disposal on the open market.
2. That the Head of Legal Service be authorised to prepare the appropriate legal 
documents and execute such documents on behalf of the Council.
3. That any purchaser pays the Council’s legal and surveyor’s costs.

Reason for decision
The Director of Economy is charged with the continual review of the Council’s land 
and property holdings to identify those that are surplus to requirements and could be 
sold. The Director of Economy is aiming to expose 25 sites to the market during 
2019/20.

Plots 1 and 2 on the plan below are areas of open space that have low amenity 
value.  Plot 3 is a community car park that is used mainly by local businesses.  
Together the sites form a valuable development plot that would support a small 
residential development.’

Page 5



Report to Cabinet

Date of Meeting 30th July 2019
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Planning, Development & 
Housing

Report Author Janet Butterworth
Public/Private Document Public

Disposal of Land at Starkey Street / Langton Street Heywood

Executive Summary

1. The sites at Starkey Street and Langton Street in Heywood are 
recommended for disposal.  The sites are considered to be surplus to the 
Council’s operational requirements.  The sale of the sites would generate a 
capital receipt for the Council and reduce its maintenance liabilities.

Consultation has been carried out with the North Heywood ward councillors 
and the Chair of Heywood Township.  Objections have been raised to the 
sale of Langton Street car park – plot 3 on the plan below.

In view of the objections raised at Township Cabinet is requested to 
consider the future of this site by using its powers to release these sites for 
disposal.

Recommendation

2. It is recommended that:

i. The sites at Starkey Street and Langton Street are declared surplus 
to requirements and released for disposal on the open market.

ii. The Head of Legal Service be authorised to prepare the appropriate 
legal documents and execute such documents on behalf of the 
Council.

iii. The purchaser pays the Council’s legal and surveyor’s costs.

Reason for Recommendation

3. The Director of Economy is charged with the continual review of the 
Council’s land and property holdings to identify those that are surplus to 
requirements and could be sold. The Director of Economy is aiming to 
expose 25 sites to the market during 2019/20.

Plots 1 and 2 on the plan below are areas of open space that have low 
amenity value.  Plot 3 is a community car park that is used mainly by local 

Page 6



businesses.  Together the sites form a valuable development plot that would 
support a small residential development.

Key Points for Consideration

4.

4.1

The 3 sites together form an area of around 0.14 ha and make an attractive 
and viable development opportunity.

Recent sales demonstrate a strong demand in the area for housing sites.

Alternatives Considered
The site could be retained in its current use. Retention of this site will not 
secure capital receipts or beneficial development, nor reduce the Council’s 
financial and/or environmental liabilities. Retaining this site in its current use 
carries the risk of liabilities such as fly-tipping, anti-social behaviour and 
regular or ad hoc maintenance obligations

Plot 3 could be retained as a car park and only plots 1 and 2 released for 
development.  

Costs and Budget Summary

5. The disposal of the sites would generate a capital receipt for the council.

The retention of Plot 3 as a car park places an ongoing maintenance liability 
on the township for which there is currently no budget.

Risk and Policy Implications

6. The disposal will meet the objectives of the Council’s Asset Strategy by 
reducing the number of Council owned assets and financial liabilities. 
Disposal of the site will facilitate the development of additional housing in 
this popular area of Heywood.

The Council is committed to release surplus assets and to continually 
review its need to hold land and property assets. Disposal of surplus 
assets assists the Council in its provision of services by producing capital 
receipts, reducing borrowing, reducing grant reliance and assists in 
achieving the efficiency targets. The disposal of surplus assets reduces the 
Council’s liabilities and the release of development opportunities 
encourages economic activity in the Borough. 

It is government policy that local authorities should dispose of surplus land 
where possible. Local authorities have various statutory powers to dispose 
of property. The only constraint is that, except with the consent of the 
Secretary of State, the disposal must be for the best consideration 
reasonably obtainable and terms should be negotiated accordingly.

Consultation

7.

Page 7



Consultation has taken place with colleagues in Legal Services, Planning, 
Highways and Environmental Management

Consultation was undertaken with the North Heywood Ward councillors 
and the chair of Heywood Township in November 2018. Ward councillors 
oppose the disposal of the car park (plot 3). Whilst no reason was given for 
this position it is assumed that the car park is considered to have amenity 
value in the community.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. None

For Further Information Contact: Janet Butterworth, Tel: 01706 923271, 
janet.butterworth@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 8



PROTOCOL FOR DEALING WITH CALLED-IN BUSINESS AT AN 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

The Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee will briefly outline the 
following procedure to the Committee, the Chair of the Township 
Committee/Cabinet Member, the Calling-in Members and Officers.

1. The Chair of the Cabinet will explain to the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee the background to the decision that has been called-in.

2. The report author will explain the reasons for the recommendation in the 
report.

3. The Calling-in Members will explain to the Committee the reasons why 
they have called-in the Sub-Committee’s decision.

4. The Calling-in Members may ask questions of the Chair of the Cabinet.

5. The Calling-in Members may ask questions of the report’s author.

6. Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee may ask questions of 
the Chair of the Cabinet and of the report author.

7. Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee may ask questions of 
the Calling-in Members.

8. The Overview and Scrutiny Committee will debate the issues.

9. The Chair of the Cabinet and the report author will have the opportunity 
to respond to any relevant points raised during the debate.

10. The Calling-in Members will have the opportunity to respond to any 
relevant points raised during the debate.

11.  The Overview and Scrutiny Committee will make its decision, and there 
are essentially three decisions which the Committee can make: -

a. To uphold the decision that has been called-in, which means the 
decision will take immediate effect.

b. To refer the decision back to the decision making body (Cabinet) to 
determine at its next available meeting, if necessary, with any 
recommendations which this (Scrutiny) Committee considers to be 
appropriate.

c. In exceptional cases to refer the matter to Full Council – only if the 
matter falls outside the remit of the Council’s approved budgetary and 
policy framework (not applicable in this case)

Page 9


	Agenda
	5 Disposal of Land at Starkey Street/Langton Street, Heywood
	Append. 1 for
	Append. 2 for
	Call-InProcedure


